
 
 

 

TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE 
10 FRONT STREET • EXETER, NH • 03833-3792 • (603) 778-0591 •FAX 772-4709 

www.exeternh.gov 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
EXETER CONSERVATION COMMISSION 

Monthly Meeting 
 

The Exeter Conservation Commission will meet in the *Exeter Town Hall 
at 11 Front Street, Exeter on Tuesday, March 21st, 2017 at 7:00 P.M. 

*note location change 
Call to Order: 

1. Introduction of Members Present  
2. Public Comment 

 
Action Items (50 min) 

1. CKT Associations:  preliminary review and comments on a proposal for the construction of an ‘active 
adult community’ and a ‘multi-use’ development on the property located at 183 Epping Road, Tax 
Map Parcels #47-8 and #47-9, respectively. The subject properties are located in the C-3 Epping Road 

2. Highway Commercial and I-Industrial zoning district. Bunker Conservation Easement – Request for 
Agricultural use (Laura Barker) 

3. McDonnell Conservation Area Kiosk  – Eagle Candidate (Caleb Mahoney) 
4. Jolly Rand or Morrrissette Scout Project Ideas – Eagle Candidate (Daniel Stinson)  
5. Comcast Cares Day: Oaklands Trail Improvements (Bob Kelly, Tom Jelinek, Harvey Gish, James 

Eiffe)    
6. Summer Band at Raynes Farm May 7th (Ben Anderson) 

 
7. Committee Reports  (50 min) 

a. Property Management – (20 min) 
i. 52 Barns in 52 Weeks Barn Assessment Grant 

ii. NRCS Forest Management Plan Update  - Elliott Mgmt Objectives 
iii. Raynes Barn Sign  

b. Trails  (10 min) 
i. Agenda and 3/22 Meeting  

c. Outreach (20 min) 
i. An Evening with the Singing Woodcock @ Raynes or Morrissette (David O’Hearn) 

ii. PEA Climate Action Day – April 26  
iii. Spring Tree Program 5/2 (packing 4/29, 4/30)  
iv. Morrissette Apple Tree Release – 6/4 (David O’Hearn)  

 
8. Approval of Minutes: February 14th, 2017, Meeting and Site Walk  
9. Correspondence 
10. Other Business 
11. Next Meeting: Date Scheduled (4/11/17), Submission Deadline (3/31/17)  
 

 
Bill Campbell, Vice-Chair  
Exeter Conservation Commission 
Amended March 20, 2017 Exeter Town Office, Exeter Public Library, and Town Departments.  

http://www.exeternh.gov/


TOWN OF EXETER 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT MEMORANDUM 

Date:  March 17, 2017 
To:  Conservation Commission Board Members 
From:  Kristen Murphy, Natural Resource Planner 
Subject:  March 21st Conservation Commission Meeting  
 
1. Bunker/Barker Conservation Easement: Request for Agricultural Use 
History: Nov 2016, easement inspection revealed violations, D. Sharples issued letter of violation on 12/9/16 with 
response requested by 1/6/17.  1/16/17 Barker responded.  2/16/17 Sharples requested additional information with 
response by 3/10/17.   3/9/17 Barker submitted a packet of additional information   
 
In accordance with easement term 2.A.ii. Ms. Barker has submitted the attached information on agricultural uses 
occurring within the Conservation Easement in request for after-the-fact approval of these activities.  The design for 
all agricultural uses has incorporated recommendations from the Natural Resource Conservation Service (NRCS) 
and included consideration of the site and soils of the property.  The remaining violations include an unpermitted 
building (hay barn) on the property, no trespassing signage and clean-up of non-agricultural related debris.  As 
submitted, Ms. Barker will be replacing the property signage, and is working through the permitting process for the 
hay barn.  Clean up of the property is scheduled to be completed no later than June 1st.  She has offered to contact 
the Town if this occurs sooner.   
 
Recommendation: 

The agricultural uses have been implemented in accordance with NRCS standards.  Should you agree that 
the design is sufficient to meet terms of the easement I recommend the following motion: 
 
Approve the agricultural use request as implemented and indicated on the attached and labeled aerial 
photograph, on the condition that the applicant obtains an approved building permit for the hay barn, and 
site inspection on or before June 1st, 2017 indicates all non-agricultural items have been removed and no 
trespassing signage has been replaced with easement compliant signage.   

 
2. McDonnell Conservation Area Kiosk  
Life Scout Caleb Mahoney is proposing to install a kiosk at the McDonnell Conservation Area.  Ginny 
has met with him onsite to discuss needs.  He will be presenting a kiosk design and project proposal for 
signature.  It is anticipated that he will draft a sign for the kiosk that the Town will print and he will 
install.  The property owner is aware of the project.   
Recommendation: 

Approve the project as proposed subject to owner agreement with Kristen and Ginny to work with the  
landowner and scout on sign development.  

 
3. Jolly Rand or Morrrissette Scout Project Ideas 
Life Scout Daniel Stinson requested and opportunity to discuss potential scout projects with the 
Commission.  He suggested trail improvements to Jolly Rand, many of which fall on Riverwoods 
property.  Should he not be able to obtain Riverwoods permission, I suggested a kiosk & trailwork for the 
Morrissette property.   
Recommendation: 

Assign a Commission member to work with Daniel and myself to refine a project proposal to be presented  
at a future date.  

  
4. Comcast Cares Event 
Request to host a Comcast Cares event in the Oaklands Town Forest on 4/22/17.  Comcast Cares is an opportunity 
for Comcast Employees to volunteer to support a community activity.  This project will entail trail maintenance 
throughout the Oaklands trail network, replacement of planks along the red trail from the Newfields Road parking 
lot south to the tunnel, and blaze refreshing if possible.  The applicants anticipate 40-80 volunteers, will encourage 



carpooling, will supply tools and safety equipment, provide port-o-potties at the trail head, and will work with 
Kristen Murphy to obtain cones for marking roadside parking along Newfields Road similar to previous event.  
Request includes approval for up to $300 for boardwalk materials.  Currently $600 remains in the Trail management 
subcategory. 
 
Recommendation: 

Should you agree the activity supports trail maintenance needs, approve the volunteer event request as  
proposed including the expenditure of up to $300 from Conservation Commission’s Town account for 
materials in support of trail management and maintenance.  

 
5. Summer Band @ Raynes Farm – Sunday, May 7, 2017 
Ben Anderson requesting to host a jazz infused American roots orchestra at the east door way of the barn with 
audience sitting outside on the grassy slope.  He would be responsible for cost, set up, clean up, etc. and if the field 
was determined not to be in proper condition, he would park everyone on my property.  He anticipates 150-200 
people. 
 
Recommendation: 

Should you agree the activity would not impact haying the field, approve the event request as proposed.  
Possible condition: road crossing safety measures be in place to accommodate parking across the street.  
 

6. Application Guidelines  
Review draft guidelines for applications coming before the conservation commission with an anticipation of a work 
session for further discussion next month. 
 
7. By-Laws 
Review draft by-laws with an anticipation of a work session for further discussion next month. 
 
8. Community Reports 

a. Property management 
i.  Awarded $250 barn assessment grant from Preservation Alliance.  As discussed, requires $50 match 
ii. Received 2 proposals.  Forwarded 2nd one to NRCS for contract establishment.  Will need to meet to  
     discuss CC management objectives for Elliott Property 
iii. Ben Anderson proposed to build a sign similar to the Word Barn sign (see his property) for Raynes  
     Farm.  Requires approval of funding ($100) and identify what it should say 

b. Trails 
i.  See trail agenda 

c. Outreach 
i.    Woodcock Walk proposed.  ID date and participants. 
ii.   PEA Climate Action Day project – Henderson Swasey Landing 
iii.  Spring Tree Program -  Requires approval of funding ($252), & ID interested members 
iv.  Morrissette Apple Tree Release – Requires approval of funding ($9) & ID interested members 
v.   Barry Conservation Camp.  Discuss how to choose a camper.  See David’s packet 
 

 
 
 

























































































































































McDonnell Conservation Area Kiosk 
 Eagle Scout Project Plan 2017 

 
The Exeter Conservation Commission has received a request for an Eagle Scout project that would involve portions 
of the McDonnell easements.  Below is a description of the proposed project.  If you feel these activities are 
appropriate for the property and are supportive of the project please return this form to the town office at:   

10 Front Street 
Exeter, NH  03833 
Attn:  Kristen Murphy 

 
Activity Description         Approval  

     (Please initial if OK) 
1.  Kiosk Construction  

Construct a kiosk for the Linden Street parking lot to consolidate 
signage, identify use limitations and provide trail information         ____________ 

  
2. Kiosk Installation 

Kiosk will be installed using cement footings to the right of the approved   
trail entrance.          ____________  
 

3. Interpretive Signs 
Sign for kiosk would be developed in coordination with Town’s Natural 
Resource Planner Kristen Murphy, Commission member Ginny Raub, and 
property owner Dianne Arnheim.  Sign will be printed using Town funds  
and installed on the kiosk by Caleb Mahoney        ____________ 

 
   

 
We have reviewed the proposal and am supportive of the project as planned. 

 
We have reviewed the proposal and are supportive of the project with the following additions: 

 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________________   _______________________ 
      Dianne Arnheim, Property Owner     Date 
 
_________________________________________   _______________________ 
      Conservation Commission Rep., Bill Cambpell    Date 
 
_________________________________________   _______________________ 
      Scout, Caleb Mahoney       Date 
 





 

 

 
   



 

Exeter Conservation Commission 
Wetland Permit Application Requirements 

The Exeter Conservation Commission has developed this checklist to assist applicants with local 
review of NH Department of Environmental Services (DES) Dredge and Fill permit applications 
to ensure complete and consistent application submissions and prevent unnecessary delays. 

Submission Requirements  
 
NH DES Wetlands Permit Application:  
In addition to the requirements set forth by the NH Department of Env. Services 
 
Electronic Submission to Planning Department by meeting deadline (website for deadlines): 

� Wetland and conditional use permit applications  
� Colored plans indicating buffers, wetlands, impact areas, etc if available 

 
Hardcopies –delivered night of the meeting:  

� 12 copies of 11x17 plans and application delivered by night of meeting (note: colored 
plans are required for the digital submission but are not required for hard copies (but 
encouraged if resources allow)  

 
Conditional Use Permit – Wetland and Shoreland Buffer Submission:    
The  Conservation Commission provides recommendations to the Planning Board on 
Conditional Use Permits.  Applications for Conservation Commission review must include: 
 
Electronic Submission to Planning Department by meeting deadline (website for deadlines): 

� wetland and conditional use permit applications  
� Colored plans indicating buffers, wetlands, impact areas, etc if available 
� Town of Exeter buffers (both wetland and shoreland) displayed on all maps (see Exeter 

Wetlands Conservation District – Article 9.1) 
� 12 Hard Copies of Applications by the Meeting Deadline with 11x17 plans, and 2 sets of 

full size plans 
 
Wetland Application Review Guidelines 
 
A site walk prior to presenting the project at a Conservation Commission meeting is strongly 
recommended.   
 
Applications must include: 
Standard Dredge and Fill 

� Thorough explanations for 20 Questions Sheet are required with clear photos 
documenting the current conditions of the project area and particularly the area to be 
affected 

http://exeternh.gov/sites/default/files/fileattachments/conservation_commission/page/14151/ecc_deadlines.20172.pdf
http://exeternh.gov/sites/default/files/fileattachments/planning_board/page/14051/pb-schedule.20172for_website.pdf
http://exeternh.gov/sites/default/files/fileattachments/2016_final.pdf
http://exeternh.gov/sites/default/files/fileattachments/2016_final.pdf
http://des.nh.gov/organization/divisions/water/wetlands/documents/wet-permit-app-attach-a.doc


 

� Plan with wetlands delineated by a state certified wetland scientist.  If older than 3 
years, the accuracy of the boundaries must be re-confirmed in writing.   

� It is preferable that maps of wetland impacts be in color 
 
 
Applications will be returned to the applicant for revision if: 
 

• Any of sections #-# are left blank 
•  

 
 
Attend a meeting 
 
Once the application is submitted, applicants are required to attend the Conservation 
Commission meeting at which the application is scheduled to be discussed. At the meeting the 
application will provide an overview of project. The following items should be included in 
project overview you provide: 

• Prior to your explanation of the project details, describe the project type, the review 
threshold under which it falls (i.e., major, minimum impact expedited), and how the 
project meets the criteria of the application level.  

• How were wetlands delineated (method? What time of year?) 
• Describe wetlands being impacted e.g., type, size of impact, hydric soils and hydrophytic 

vegetation, isolated or part of complex, functions and values 
• What alternatives have been considered to reduce wetland impacts 
•  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Comment [EA1]: Solicit input from 
Commission here. Provide blank/example 
wetlands application to work through? 

Comment [EA2]: I think Commission input is 
also important here to see what people most 
want to hear about. I brainstormed a few 
items to start 



 
 
 
 
 
 

BY-LAWS 
 

OF 
 

THE CONSERVATION COMMISSION 
 
 

OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE 
 

  



2 | P a g e   R e v i s e d ,  A u g u s t ,  2 0 1 5  

 

 
Article I Name and Location 

 
The name of this (voluntary, non-profit,) organization shall be the Exeter Conservation 
Commission (hereafter called The Commission). The principal office of The Commission 
shall be located at The Exeter Town Office Building, 10 Front Street, Exeter, New 
Hampshire. 
 

Article II  
Authority 

Established in March 1965 by a vote at Exeter Town Meeting, tThe Commission derives its 
authority from State Law RSA 36-A and from the Town of Exeter Ordinances. Nothing in 
these by-laws is intended to conflict with these. 
 

Article  
III  

Purposes 
 

1. To ensure the conservation and proper utilization of the natural resources and 
the protection of watershed resources of the Town of Exeter. 

2. To advise other Town boards on conservation and natural resource matters. 
3. To acquire land for fee (full title) or through conservation easement for 

conservation purposes and to receive gifts of money or property in the name of 
the Town. This may include water resources. The Commission will then manage 
these areas[k1]. 

4. To manage duly authorized town forests. 
5. To conduct research into local land and water natural resources to ascertain 

their value for conservation purposes. 
6. To keep the public informed as to actions taken and lands available for public 

use through maps, signs, charts, plans and pamphlets. 
7. To intervene when appropriate within 10 days of a dredge and fill of wetlands 

application, and to investigate and report its findings and recommendations 
within 40 days to the NH Wetlands Board.(RSA 483A) 

8. To receive copies of sand and gravel excavation permit applications and make 
necessary comments and recommendations to the proper board.(RSA 155-E) 

9. To monitor yearly open space and conservation lands, including easements. 
10. To sponsor activities which foster conservation education. 
11. To assist in the Town's Master Plan up-date. 
12. To attend workshops, informational meetings and conferences so that the 

Commission is adequately informed about conservation issues. 
  
 
 
 



3 | P a g e   R e v i s e d ,  A u g u s t ,  2 0 1 5  

 

 
 

Article IV  
Membership 

 
1. Eligibility and Appointment of Members[k2] 

 
A. The Commission shall consist of not less than seven regular and five 

alternate members, appointed by the Board of Selectmen. 
B. Terms of the members shall be for three years and be so arranged that 

approximately one-third of the members' terms expire yearly. 
C. Members may serve no more than two consecutive three-year terms. 
D. The balance of an un-expired term shall be filled by the Selectmen[k3]. 
E. Alternate members may take an active part in the meetings, but may vote 

only to obtain a quorum. 
F. New members shall register with the Town Clerk and sign appropriate   

papers. 
 

2. Election of Officers 
 
A. Officers for the Commission shall be elected each May for a term of one 

year. 
B. Officers may serve consecutive terms. 
 

3. Absenteeism 
 
A. Members are expected to attend all monthly meetings unless the Chair is 

notified in advance. 
B. Unexcused absence from four meetings may result in a letter being sent 

to the regular member or alternate in question. If no reply is forthcoming 
in a reasonable amount of time (usually one month), the member will be 
requested to submit his or her resignation, and the Selectmen will be so 
notified to select a replacement. 

 
Article V 

Responsibilities of Offices 
 

1. Chairperson 
A. It shall be the duty of the Chair, or his/her designate, to notify in advance 

all members of the Commission of any scheduled meeting. The Chair is 
also responsible for preparing agenda for the meeting listing issues to be 
discussed. 

B. The Chair shall run the meeting and assign the floor to those speakers 
who request it. 



4 | P a g e   R e v i s e d ,  A u g u s t ,  2 0 1 5  

 

 
 
 

C. The Chair may take part in any discussions relative to the business at 
hand and will rule on any disputes that arise during debates. 

D. The Chair will have a vote only in case of a deadlock or in the event that 
said vote would constitute a quorum necessary to expedite the business 
at hand. 
 

2. Vice-Chairperson 
A. The Vice-Chair shall preside at all meetings of the Commission in the 

absence of the Chair and shall perform all duties and have all powers of 
the Chair in case of temporary absence or incapacity of the Chair. 
 

3. Secretary[k4] 
A. In the absence of administrative staff, tThe Secretary shall keep an 

accurate record of the meetings and other proceedings of the Commission 
B. In accordance with RSA 91-A:2, aA typed copy of the minutes shall be 

made available for public inspection not more than 5 business days after 
the meeting, and completed within 144 hours of the meeting and a copy 
brought to the Town Clerk’s Office. 

C. In the absence of administrative staff, tThe Secretary shall be responsible 
for correspondence designated by the Commission.   
 

4. Treasurer 
C.A. The Treasurer insures all monies received by the Commission is 

accounted for and deposited into The Commission’s bank account and 
disbursed from that account only with proper authorization by official 
vote of The Commission shall keep an accurate record of the finances of 
the Commission and pay all obligations levied against it when approved 
by the Commission and ordered by the Chair.   

D.B. The Treasurer shall report on the status of the Commissions monies at 
meetings of the Commission not less than quarterly at each meeting and 
file a copy of that report with the Planning DepartmentChair, the 
Secretary and the Treasurer  of the Town of Exeter. 

E. The Treasurer shall also prepare an annual financial report and file a 
copy of that report with the Chair, the Secretary and the Treasurer of the 
Town of Exeter. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



5 | P a g e   R e v i s e d ,  A u g u s t ,  2 0 1 5  

 

Article VI 
Committees 

 
  

1. The Raynes Farm Stewardship Sub-Committee 
A. Objectives:  This committee is advisory to The Commission and shall: 

(i) Oversee the use of the Raynes Farm and barn, help identify and 
prioritize preservation and public use objectives for Commission 
review. 

(ii) The chair serves as the primary contact person for inquiries 
regarding the property, particularly in maintaining the Town’s 
relationship with the farmers who lease the farmland and barn. 

(iii) Review the LCHIP monitoring report, the farmer-Commission 
lease agreement, and the Raynes Farm Long Range Development 
Plan.  Any suggestions for changes are agreed upon by the 
Committee and shall be submitted to The Commission for their 
approval. 

(iv) Provide recommendations to the Conservation Commission on 
implementation of projects that have budgetary impacts. 
 

B. Membership: This committee shall consist of at least 5 members including 
representatives from The Commission, a member of the Exeter Heritage 
Commission, a member of the Public Works Department and private citizens.  
In addition, any individuals leasing the land will also be a part of the 
committee but will not vote when decisions concerning their lease are 
discussed.  Other members may be selected from the town at large with the 
goal of furthering the objectives of the Long Range Development Plan. 
 

C. Procedures:  The committee shall elect its own chair annually.  The 
committee shall meet at least annually for the purposes of reviewing the 
LCHIP monitoring report, the Farmer-Commission lease agreement, and the 
progress with projects identified in the Raynes Farm Long Range 
Development Plan. 
 

2.  Trails Sub-Committee 
A. Objectives:  This committee is advisory to The Commission and shall: 

(i) Oversee the creation and maintenance of trails on Conservation 
Lands in accordance with the trail management plan and advise 
The Commission on actions that need to be taken. 

(ii) Submit a list of recommended trail projects to the Commission 
each year in order to meet budget planning schedules. 

(iii) Oversee the site inspections for trail event permits. 
(iv) Work with the Outreach and Education Committee for trail-

related and public events and publications. 



6 | P a g e   R e v i s e d ,  A u g u s t ,  2 0 1 5  

 

B. Membership:  This committee shall consist of 3?? representatives from The 
Commission.  Other members may be selected from the town at large with 
the goal of having representation from a diversity of recreational uses and 
furthering the intent of the trail plan.  

C. Procedures: The committee shall elect its own chair annually.  The chair shall 
be a member of The Commission.  The committee shall meet at least 2 times a 
year to identify and prioritize trail projects needs and as needed to further 
the objectives of the trail management plan.   
 

3. The Outreach and Education Sub-Committee 
A. Objectives:  This committee is advisory to The Commission and shall: 

(i) Promote conservation news, issues and events to the public. 
(ii) Sponsor and oversee conservation programs for the schools and 

local clubs and organizations such as for Arbor Day. 
(iii) Have responsibility for publications produced by the 

Commission including trail guides and maps (in coordination 
with the Trails Committee above when trails are involved) as 
well as developing content for the town website and social 
media. 
 

B.  Membership:  This committee shall consist of at least three people, one of 
whom shall be a member of The Commission. Other members may be 
selected from the town at large.  
 

C. Procedures:  The Committee shall elect its own chair annually. The chair shall 
be a member of the Commission.  

 
 

4. The Open Space Sub-Committee 
A. Objectives:  This committee is advisory to The Commission and shall: 

(i) Provide an open space stewardship role for the Town; 
developing annual monitoring priorities, assisting in 
conservation land audits, inspecting and documenting open 
space land boundaries, and providing feedback as to property 
conditions and recommendations for follow-up to The 
Commission.  

(ii) Advise The Commission as to proper land management policies, 
procedures and methods for land acquired by the Town that is 
preserved as open space. 

(iii) Assist the Town’s Natural Resource Planner in reviewing and 
inventorying Town land designated as open space including 
maintenance of this inventory on a continual basis.  

(iv) Evaluate potential conservation projects  making 
recommendations for the acquisition of open space lands and 



7 | P a g e   R e v i s e d ,  A u g u s t ,  2 0 1 5  

 

conservation easements to The Commission by considering 
resources present and the Natural Resource Inventory, Master 
Plan and other guidance documents; 

(v) Mobilize community groups and develop programs related to the 
ongoing maintenance of open space land, including stewardship 
efforts by the public, non-profit, and private sectors;  

(vi) Engage and educate residents of the Town of Exeter about the 
benefits of open space land, the location and accessibility of 
Exeter’s existing open space, and priorities for future open space 
acquisition town-wide;  

(vii) Foster partnerships with groups with similar goals to further 
land conservation and support efforts related to grant 
applications to federal, state, and private resources for open 
space acquisition  

(viii) Develop and recommend Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 
actions relating to the acquisition and protection of open space 
land; 
 

B. Membership:  This committee shall consist of at least three people, one of 
whom shall be a member of The Commission. Other members may be 
selected from the town at large.   
 

C.  Procedures:  The Committee shall elect its own chair annually. The chair 
shall be a member of the Commission.  

1.5.  
 

2. The Street Tree and Nursery Committee 
A. This committee shall 

(i) work with the Planning Department and others to plan and 
oversee the planting and maintenance of trees on public streets. 

 
(ii) maintain the Conservation Commission's portion of the Wilfred 

Moreau Nursery in conjunction with Public Works and use the 
plants from this Nursery to enhance the beauty of Exeter. 

B. This committee shall consist of at least three people, one of whom shall be a 
member of the Conservation Commission. Other members may be selected 
from the town at large. Appointments shall be made by the Chair of the 
Commission for one year and renewed annually. 

C. The Committee shall elect its own chair annually. The chair shall be a 
member of the Commission. 
 

3. The Outreach and Education Committee 
A. This committee shall 

(i) promote conservation news, issues and events to the public. 



8 | P a g e   R e v i s e d ,  A u g u s t ,  2 0 1 5  

 

(ii) sponsor and oversee conservation programs for the schools such 
as for Arbor Day.  

(iii) have responsibility for publications produced by the 
Commission including trail guides and maps. 

B. This committee shall consist of at least three people, one of whom shall be a 
member of the Conservation Commission. Other members may be selected 
from the town at large. Appointments shall be made by the Chair of the 
Commission for one year and renewed annually. 

C. The Committee shall elect its own chair annually. The chair shall be a 
member of the Commission. 
 

4.6. The Land Management Committee 
A. Objectives:  This committee is advisory to the Commission and This 

committee shall 
(i) oversee the management of the Town lands designated 

conservation areas.  
(i) monitor easements and fee owned lands held by the Commission 

and maintaining the files relating to such monitoring.  
(ii)  
(iii) oversee the creation and maintenance of trails on the 

Conservation lands.  
(ii) Periodically inspect property boundaries and re-mark surveyor 

points to retain boundary integrity and install boundary discs 
along boundary lines. 

(iv)(iii) promote public stewardship of the lands. 
B. This committee shall consist of at least three people, one of whom shall be a 

member of the Conservation CommissionThe Commission. Other members 
may be selected from the town at large. Appointments shall be made by the 
Chair of the Commission for one year and renewed annually. 

C. The Committee shall elect its own chair annually. The chair shall be a 
member of the Commission. 

 
5. The Watershed Committee[k5] 

A. This committee shall 
(i) monitor the usage of the rivers and streams that are in, or flow 

through, Exeter. 
(ii) oversee water quality monitoring programs. 
(iii) work with the Planning Department on watershed management 

issues. 
B. This committee shall consist of at least three people, one of whom shall be a 

member of the Conservation Commission. Other members may be selected from 
the town at large. Appointments shall be made by the Chair of the Commission 
for one year and renewed annually. 



9 | P a g e   R e v i s e d ,  A u g u s t ,  2 0 1 5  

 

C. The Committee shall elect its own chair annually. The chair shall be a member of 
the Commission. 
 

6.7. Ad Hoc Committees 
A. Ad Hoc committees may be appointed by the Chair of the Commission as the 

need arises. At least one member of the Commission shall serve on each 
committee. 

 
Article VII  

Operating Procedures 
1. Meetings 

A. Public notice of Commission Meetings must be posted in two public 
places, such as the Town Offices, the Post Officethe Town’s website, or the 
Library, 24 hours prior to the meeting. The notice shall be published 
according to State law RSA 91, a copy of which is available in the 
Conservation Commission Handbook. 

B. At the discretion of the Chair The Chair shall direct the calling ofthere 
shall be not less than one regular meeting of the Commission each month. 
Such meetings will be held in the Town Offices on the second Tuesday of 
each month at 7:00 p.m. unless otherwise specified by the Commission or 
the Chair prior to the second Tuesday. 

C. Special meetings may be held, if necessary, at the discretion of the Chair. 
They may also be called by the Commission on a majority vote of the 
members for a special purpose. At any special meeting, no business other 
than that specified by the Commission may be considered. 

D. Individual notification of each Commission member by the Chair shall be 
given not less than five days before the date of any special meeting . 

E. A majority of the members of the Commission then in office shall 
constitute a quorum for the transaction of any business. 

F. It is the responsibility of the Chair to convey to the appropriate State, 
County or Town board or commission recommendations passed by the 
Commission. 
 

2. Public Hearings 
A. A public hearing must be held before any money from Conservation funds 

are used to acquire "any interest in real property"(RSA 36-A:5 II). A 
public hearing may be held in conjunction with an investigation of a fill 
and dredge application or to solicit opinions on other issues deemed 
important by the Commission. 

B. Notice for such a meeting must be posted in two public places and in a 
newspaper "of general circulation in the municipality" at least 10 days 
before the hearing, counting neither the day of posting or the day of the 
hearing. (RSA 675:7) 



10 | P a g e   R e v i s e d ,  A u g u s t ,  2 0 1 5  

 

C. Conduct of the meeting should follow the procedure outlined on p. III-4 of 
the Handbook for Municipal Conservation Commissions in New 
Hampshire. 

D. Minutes of the meeting should include the members of the commission 
present, those who testified and a summary of their positions. These 
minutes should be distributed in the same manner as regular minutes, 
described in Article V, Section 3B. 
 

3. Dredge and Fill Applications 
A. Upon receipt of a copy of an application to dredge and fill wetlands from 

the Town clerk, per RSA 482-A:3 (except for agricultural and minimum 
impact applications as noted in D below), the Chair shall send a letter of 
intervention to the wetlands board asking for an additional 30 days for 
review if a regularly scheduled meeting will not meet review deadlines. 

B. The Commission may hold public hearings, public informational meetings 
and/or conduct site walks as part of its review. The application must be 
discussed, and a decision made as to its impact, at a regular meeting of 
the Commission. 

C. A final letter of recommendations shall be sent to the wetlands board. 
D. Upon receipt of agricultural wetlands or minimal impact applications 

from the Rockingham County Conservation District (RCCD), the 
Commission shall review the application and prepare a letter to 
accompany the application or sign the supplied forms in accordance with 
state procedures. 
 

4. Review of Sand and Gravel Excavations 
A. Upon receipt of a copy of an application for a permit to excavate, per RSA 

155-E, the Commission will review the application as to its impact on the 
natural resources of the area. 

B. The Commission may hold public hearings, public informational meetings 
and/or conduct site walks as part of its review. The application must be 
discussed, and a decision made as to its impact, at a regular meeting of 
the Commission. 

C. A final letter of recommendations shall be sent to the Planning Board. 
 

5. Request from Planning Board, Zoning Board or Technical Review Committee for 
Advice or Review. 

A. Upon receipt of a request for advice or review by any Town board or 
committee, the Commission shall review the request and respond 
appropriately. 

A.B. For projects that appear before the Commission prior to other land 
use boards,  The Commission may provide recommendations to those boards 
for consideration. 
 



11 | P a g e   R e v i s e d ,  A u g u s t ,  2 0 1 5  

 

6. By-laws 
A. These By-laws shall be reviewed annually and revised as needed by a 

majority vote of the Commission.  
B.  
C. Revised, October, 2001 
D.A.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COMMENTS FOOTNOTES 
 

K1Ginny suggests adding note “may require stewardship fee”.  

K2 Suggest alternate format modeled after Weare CC. 

MEMBERSHIP AND TERMS OF OFFICE  

1. Regular Members: A full Commission shall consist of seven (7) regular members, appointed by the 
Board of Selectmen for three-year terms.  Terms shall be arranged so that approximately one-third of the 
members’ terms expire yearly.  Members may serve no more than two consecutive three-year terms and 
are eligible for alternate member position after maximum terms are served.  The appointment of 
members shall conform to terms and requirements of RSA 36-A.  

2. Alternates: The Board of Selectmen may appoint, five (5) alternate members who may serve upon 
designation by the Chair in place of a regular member in the event of absence or disqualification. The 
terms for alternates shall be the same as for regular members.  

3. Ex-Officio: The Board of Selectmen may appoint an ex-officio member to The Commission.  Ex-Officio 
members exercise all the powers of regular members, including voting.   

4.  New members shall file an application with the Town Managers Office and will be contacted for an 
interview by the Board of Selectmen.  All members must be residents of Exeter. 

K3 Unclear what the intent of this is. Consider removal. 

K4 Consider combining the Secretary and Treasurer positions 

K5 Consider keeping this as a way to give some formality to VRAP. 

 

 



 
 

 

TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE 
10 FRONT STREET • EXETER, NH • 03833-3792 • (603) 778-0591 •FAX 772-4709 

www.exeternh.gov 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

Exeter Trails Committee Meeting 
 

The Exeter Trails Committee, a subcommittee to the Conservation Commission  
will meet in the Nowak Room of the Exeter Town offices  

10 Front Street, Exeter on Wednesday, March 22nd, 2017 at 7:00 P.M. 
 

 
 
Agenda 

1. Trail Management 
a. Trail History 
b. New Trail Approval Process 
c. Unauthorized Trails 

 
2. 2017 Trail Maintenance Needs 

a. Trail Blazing 
b. Infrastructure Repair 
c. Sign Needs 

 
3. Maintenance Opportunities 

a. April 26th PEA Climate Action Day 
b. Part Time Summer Interns  

 
 

Jay Gregoire, Chair  
Exeter Trail Committee 
February 27th, 2017 Exeter Town Office, Exeter Public Library, and Town Departments.  

http://www.exeternh.gov/


Kristen Murphy <kmurphy@exeternh.gov>

Agenda item for March 2017 ConCom meeting Camp Barry and the Exeter
Conservation Commission 
1 message

David O'Hearn <dohearn@wtgnh.com> Tue, Feb 21, 2017 at 11:39 AM
To: Kristen Murphy <kmurphy@exeternh.gov>

Hi Kristen,

Please put the email below and documents aퟜ�ached on the March 2017 agenda. The action
item I would like to discuss is how do we pick a camper?

Thank you,

David

 

 

 

From: Barker, Larry [mailto:Larry.Barker@unh.edu] 
Sent: Tuesday, February 21, 2017 11:31 AM
To: David O'Hearn
Subject : RE: Camp Barry and the Exeter Conservation Commission

 

Greetings David,

 

Thanks for your past and continued support of Barry Conservation Camp!   I am glad to hear that you’ve convinced the
Exeter Conservation Commission to support BCC too.  We do have several openings for the Junior Conservation Officer
week 2017 and  I  would be happy to save you a spot if you’d like.   I would need to know whether it’s for a boy or a girl.

 

The attached letter explains our process for sponsors.  Anticipate a nearly identical timeline and process for 2018.   I
have added your email address our list of town conservation commissions.  The other address we have for Exeter looks
like it goes to the town office and my experience with many towns  is that the message does not always reach the
conservation commissions.    

 

Again, thanks for your support.   Holler with any questions.

 

Regards,

 

mailto:Larry.Barker@unh.edu


Larry Barker

= = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = =

Larry Barker

Barry Conservation 4-H Camp,

UNH Cooperative Extension

629A Main Street

Lancaster, NH 03584

(603)788-4961

 

http://extension.unh.edu/4-H-Youth-Family/Barry-Conservation-4-H-Camp

 

= = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = =

 

 

 

 

 

From: David O'Hearn [mailto:dohearn@wtgnh.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, February 21, 2017 10:45 AM 
To: 4hcamps (UNH) <4hcamps@unh.edu> 
Subject: Camp Barry and the Exeter Conservation Commission

 

Hello UNH Extension,

My name is David O’Hearn and I am an Exeter Conservation Commission member. Way
back in 1976 I was one of 30 teenagers to spend the summer at the then Youth Conservation
Corp, now Barry Conservation Camp.

I came up a few years ago for the first weekend of rehabilitating the structures. I wrote a
story NH F&G posted on their website.

 

I am writing to you to let you know I asked Exeter ConCom to sponsor a camper. The idea
was well received. We noted that the classes are mostly full. So we would like to inquire about
signing a camper up for 2018.

 

tel:(603)%20788-4961
http://extension.unh.edu/4-H-Youth-Family/Barry-Conservation-4-H-Camp
mailto:dohearn@wtgnh.com
mailto:4hcamps@unh.edu


Can you please give me the timeline for the 2018 camping season so we can plan our
recruiting?  

 

Thank you,

David O’Hearn

Exeter, NH ConCom

603-770-3905

dohearn@wtgnh.com

 

 

 

 

 

 

2 attachments

sponsors l tr1.pdf
46K

BCC flyer2017 draft2.pdf
177K

tel:(603)%20770-3905
mailto:dohearn@wtgnh.com
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=86fab22653&view=att&th=15a618ab0293e971&attid=0.1&disp=attd&safe=1&zw
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=86fab22653&view=att&th=15a618ab0293e971&attid=0.2&disp=attd&safe=1&zw


COÖS COUNTY
629A Main Street
Lancaster, NH 03584
(603)788-4961
FAX: (603)788-3629
http://ceinfo.unh.edu

November 17, 2016

Barry Conservation 4-H Camp Sponsors

Greetings,

Thank you very much for your previous support of Barry Conservation 4-H Camp!  The 2016 season was absolutely 
tremendous and we're now gearing up for 2017.  One of the challenges we’re facing is dramatically increasing
demand for Barry Camp.  Every season, camp fills earlier and earlier.   This year, we plan to go live with our
registration on January 20, 2017.  However, we want to provide an opportunity for sponsors to reserve spots now. 
Here's the plan:

• Contact us between now and January 15 to save your spot(s).   We need to know both the session and the
gender of the camper(s) you'll be sponsoring.

• The camper(s) must be named and registered no later than April 1.   

• Payment must be received by June 1.

The reason we need both the session and gender is because some sessions will likely fill within days of January 20.  
Because of housing at camp, we need to know how many cabins will be needed for both girls and boys.   We can't
leave an entire cabin unreserved on the chance that a sponsor will be sending a girl or a boy - we need to know.   If it
helps in your planning, the gender ratio at camp is usually about 70% boys and 30% girls.    

If you are unable to name your camper April 1, then we will fill the slot from campers on the waiting list.  

We're happy to say that the rates will remain unchanged for 2017 - $495 for a full week, $200 for Mini Camp and 
$305 for Junior CO week.  You can learn more about the dates and weekly themes by viewing the attached flyer. 

We hope that you'll consider sponsoring a camper(s) this year.   Barry Camp is a very special place.  There is a little
magic there and sending a child to summer camp can - and often does - change lives for the better!   

As always, give me a holler it you have any questions. 

Thanks for your support,

Larry Barker
Barry Conservation 4-H Camp Administrator

enclosure

The University of New Hampshire Cooperative Extension is an equal opportunity
educator and employer. University of New Hampshire, U.S. Department of Agriculture

and N.H. counties cooperating.



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Barry Conservation 4‐H Camp is great for kids who love the outdoors, enjoy hands‐on learning in 
environmental and conservation programs and can benefit from participating in a small camp.  Our 
staff takes pride in creating a special community where kids can discover their individual strengths.  
Each week has a theme, but also includes a generous complement of traditional camp activities 
such as swimming, hiking, campfire, canoeing, skits, fishing, archery, and more.   Join us and make 
new friends as you unplug and enjoy the outdoors! 
 

Barry Conservation Camp is operated by the UNH Cooperative 
Extension 4‐H Program in cooperation with the N.H. Fish and Game 
Department. Located in the scenic White Mountain National Forest, 
Barry Conservation Camp provides a small close‐knit community for its 
40 campers and 11 staff.  Small, cozy cabins house 7 campers and a counselor.  Campers are 
grouped by age and gender. There are new and modern central toilets, shower facilities and a 
beautiful dining hall complete with a great kitchen which produces legendary meals.   
 
Learn more about Barry Conservation 4‐H Camp by visiting our website.   Be sure to check out the 
slide shows to get a glimpse of the setting and of the fun and magical atmosphere at camp.   We 
hope that you will consider giving Barry Conservation 4‐H Camp a try!   http://extension.unh.edu/4‐
H‐Youth‐Family/Barry‐Conservation‐4‐H‐Camp 
 
4‐H Shooting Sports    June 25 –  30    Ages 10‐16  $495      Activity Scale 2 
Join us for a week centered on the NH 4‐H Shooting Sports program.  Certified instructors will help 
youth learn marksmanship, the safe and responsible use of firearms, and the basic principles of 
hunting.  Previous shooting sports experience is preferred, but not essential.  
 
Mini‐Camp      July 5 – 7    Ages 8‐12  $200    Activity Scale 1 
Mini‐Camp is perfect for first‐timer campers and younger children!  This abbreviated session will 
include 2 nights and 3 days.  Campers will enjoy our caring staff who will introduce them to many 
fun and exciting camp activities.  Learn about nature, try your hand at crafts, explore outdoor 
games, sing around the campfire...this week has it all.  
 
Fish Camp      July 9 ‐ 14    Ages 10‐16  $495    Activity Scale 2 
Come along and catch the big one!  Novice anglers will learn the basic skills and equipment needed 
to get started fishing while campers with more experience will work on improving their fishing skills 
and exploring the finer details of the angling world.  Campers will also hike, swim, canoe, create 
campfire skits and enjoy a host of other great activities.  

More → 



 
4‐H On The Wild Side    July 16 ‐ 21    Ages 10 – 16  $495    Activity Scale 3 
Experience nature and reunite with the great outdoors.  Paddle a canoe, fillet a fish and cook it over 
an open fire, sleep under the stars, learn how to observe nature, climb a mountain, swim in a pond, 
create nature crafts and more. Truly experience the great outdoors.  Sounds like fun! 
 
Hunter Education    July 23 ‐ 28    Ages 12‐16  $495    Activity Scale 2 
Join NH Fish and Game Department Hunter Education staff, volunteer instructors and camp 
counselors to learn and practice safe, responsible and ethical hunting.  If a camper wishes to be 
eligible for hunter education certification at the end of the week, then some homework must be 
completed prior to coming to camp.   
 
North Country Adventure  July 30 ‐ August 4  Ages 12 ‐ 16  $495             Activity Scale 3+ 
Get ready for a fantastic week of exciting outdoor adventure.  This week will focus on building your 
woodcraft skills.   Campers will track wildlife, go on a canoe or backpacking adventure, learn about  
trapping, practice survival skills,  navigate with compass and GPS, practice hunting skills, and more. 
There will be plenty of fishing and shooting sports too. 
 
Junior Conservation Officer  August 6 – 9    Ages 14 ‐ 17  $305           Activity Scale 3++ 
This session is for older campers who are interested in learning about outdoor careers.  New 
Hampshire Conservation Officers will be at camp all week and will be teaching a host of fun, exciting 
and interesting sessions. In addition to traditional camp activities, topics will include search and 
rescue, crime scene investigation, firearms safety, tracking, surveillance, night vision technology, 
wildlife laws, arrest procedures, K‐9 techniques, and much, much more.     
 
 
*The Activity Scale estimates the level of challenging physical activity each week.  1= some, 
2=moderate, 3=lots    
 
 

 1/5/17 
 

4hcamps@unh.edu                                             (603)788‐4961   
 

http://extension.unh.edu/4H/4HCamps.htm    
 

The University of New Hampshire Cooperative Extension is an equal opportunity educator and employer.  
University of New Hampshire, U.S. Department of Agriculture, and NH Counties cooperating.  



1 
 

CONSERVATION COMMISSION 
2/14/17 

DRAFT MINUTES 
 

1. Call to Order: 
 

Vice Chair Bill Campbell, Acting Chair, called meeting to order at 7:01 pm. 
Introduction of Members present: Todd Piskovitz; Ginny Raub, Clerk; Bill 
Campbell, Vice Chair; Andrew Koff, Treasurer; Anne Surman, Board of 
Selectmen’s Representative; and David O’Hearn. 
 
Staff present were Kristen Murphy, Natural Resources Planner; and David 
Pancoast, Recording Secretary. Members of public were present as well. 
 
2. Public comment: 

 
Sheila Roberge of 15 Pickpocket Rd said she has lived in Exeter 45 years. She had 
an after the fact, important request, and gave the background. She has lived at 15 
Pickpocket Rd in the old Kimball house that was built around circa 1730’s for 
many years. About 35 years ago it was all woods behind the house. It was nice 
property, always open to public hunting and walking. In the early 2000’s that 
property was sold to Riverwoods, which then expanded. In 1980’s property was 
deemed to be a very valuable wildlife area and protection for it was sought. 
Riverwoods built the “Boulders” In 2008, which was fought at a ZBA meeting, but 
they lost. In April 2008, the CEO of Riverwoods specifically offered (at ZBA) to 
protect a portion of the property for conservation. Somehow they lost track of that 
but in January 2017, Ms. Roberge got a meeting notice from Riverwoods for two 
buildings, parking and improvements on Timber Lane. She called Kristen Murphy 
and the Southeast Land Trust. She learned that Riverwoods had bought her 
neighbor’s property to the right of hers and was going to use some of it for a 
conservation land swap. Ms. Murphy found out that no protective easement was 
held on it by anyone. Apparently Riverwoods had approached this Conservation 
Commission about taking it, but the land was fragmented by the new road, so the 
Commission didn’t want it. Rockingham Country Conservation was also not 
interested. Riverwoods then went to the Southeast Land Trust, which was fairly 
new then, and it was not ready to take it on at that time, so it also didn’t want it. 
The matter languished with no interested land recipients, and the whole thing got 
lost in the shuffle so to speak.  
 
Later on, Riverwoods changed its mind and decided not to build on Timber Lane 
but up behind the Boulders area. It wanted the building connected to its existing 



2 
 

campus, which was understandable to her. But doing that doesn’t make sense 
environmentally, there are two wetlands there. She is very concerned about these 
revelations. This is a unique property, even though badly compromised. The 
wetlands mitigation already done by Riverwoods is not good. Dugout areas are 
filled with pipes and rip-rapped along the road. Riverwoods did put in trails and 
wood duck habitat, but the heron rookery area of the property was lost. UNH 
wildlife studies have found threatened yellow-spotted salamanders there. The large 
wetlands empties into Pennell Pond. There are turkeys, deer, etc., so the habitat is 
a good one. There is a large system of trails on both sides of Timber Lane. Erratic 
boulders on the left side of the road remain and local kids love to play on them. 
There are beautiful quarried granite pieces with chisel cut marks still on them. 
There are also four original old stone walls in good shape. 
 
She is here to ask the Commission to revisit/reconsider its prior decision from 
2008/2009 and ask Riverwoods if it can still get a protective conservation 
easement over it. People are out there using trails. It’s hard to look at it now with 
all the snow, but in better weather they could look at it and walk the trails. At the 
ZBA hearing on it, one member of ZBA opposed the road as it would lead to more 
developable parcels and further development of it should not occur. Pickpocket 
Road residents have been very concerned about traffic and the imminent loss of 
the property she is discussing. It would be great to get an easement on it at least. 
Development of it is a total disregard for the property’s natural beauty. [she passed 
out pictures for Members’ information]. She also thinks that the “Split Rock” 
should be preserved. 
 
Mr. Campbell said he had become aware that the Town Planner is working with 
them. The Commission needs to wait until it comes to them. Ms. Raub asked if the 
area is contiguous. Mr. Campbell said the Commission had thought that another 
entity (Rockingham County Conservation District) was going to protect it, but they 
didn’t, and Riverwoods never came back to tell the Commission that so it could 
reconsider its prior decision on it. He said the Commission would consider it. 
 
Dave Saffridge of Pickpocket Woods also spoke, as President of its community 
well association. They support Ms. Roberge in this. There are 10 homes on a 
community well there. The well head is 50 years old and close to the lot line and to 
Split Rock. Its radius of protection is 1000 feet, so that goes up to the maintenance 
shed in Riverwoods. Concerned about blasting for water and sewer lines. He said 
they were shocked it wasn’t in any Conservation Easement. Community wanted it 
protected back then, in exchange for the original development. He asked if a land 
swap now could even work officially. Mr. Campbell said it was never officially 
under a Conservation Easement, so Riverwoods can still do a land swap on it. Mr. 



3 
 

Saffridge asked what the issue was back then with the Commission not taking it. 
Mr. Campbell said he recalled that back then the Rockingham Conservation 
District (“RCD”) was supposed to take it and the Commission preferred that since 
it would not have to take on that additional responsibility at that time. But the 
Commission never knew that RCD didn’t pick up the easement. That makes the 
land swap possible now.  
 
Ms. Murphy then said she had met with Riverwoods, with the Town Planner Dave 
Sharples and Doug Eastman, Code Enforcement Officer a week ago. At that 
meeting, they emphasized that protection of ‘X’ number of acres was an original  
requirement of that development approval and had to still occur, but it might not 
be the same area of protection as originally intended. “The Ridge” is also not in 
third-party protection, it’s self-monitored by Riverwoods. She said it will 
absolutely be protected as a condition of approval. How it happens will be decided. 
 
Mr. Saffridge asked if that there could still be a land swap on it? Ms. Murphy 
explained the hierarchy of strength of protection. Riverwoods could still swap it 
out because right now the original parcels weren’t protected. [Mr. Saffridge then 
showed Members his tablet with plans and parcel locations that had been 
discussed]. He said that everything not in the original development footprint was 
to become an easement but didn’t. 
 
Mr. Campbell thanked both speakers for their input and said the Commission 
would look into it with input from the Planner and Ms. Murphy. Ms. Raub asked 
whose “court the ball is in?” Mr. Campbell said it’s officially in Riverwoods’ 
court-since they have to come back for approval compliance before they can move 
forward with any new plans. 
 
There were no other public comments. 
 
3. Action Items: 

 
a. 104 Brentwood Road: Conditional Use Permit (“CUP”) Application. 

Tax Map 61-23. (Chris Burke) 
 

Chris Burke gave an overview-he has 1.5 acres, the majority of it is currently 
inaccessible. Wants a barn out back. He would like to fill in a portion of his lot 
just for rear access and cut trees and grind the stumps. Mostly the area is in 
wetlands buffer zone. He said the buffer zone comes right up to the house. He 
had done some cutting, not knowing about the buffer zone, and a skidder was 
used in that timbering operation.  



4 
 

Luke Hurley, Gold Environmental, is Mr. Burke’s consultant on this matter. He 
said he flagged two wetlands: smaller isolated wetlands in front of the lot, and 
larger to the rear. He did that work before the snow came. They hold water. The 
buffer zone comes off the larger wetlands to rear. The cutting and skidding 
operation hasn’t caused any damage to wetlands, only buffer area. He added 
that Mr. Burke is intending to level the area out, not really fill it. It’s so rocky 
it’s not usable for anything. 
 
Logging machines tore up the buffer. If it could be leveled out for access, Mr. 
Burke would do plantings back there to mitigate machine damage. Ms. Raub 
suggested could reduce it to less filling. If they remove boulders, wouldn’t it 
impact the ground? She suggested they leave the boulders not in the actual 
accessway. Mr. Hurley said larger erratic boulders could be in the way. Ms. 
Raub said a 20 ft wide accessway is enough, they could leave the rest natural. 
Mr. Hurley said it’s a boulder field back there. They need to move some of the 
larger ones for having a usable area. 
 
After some discussion, Mr. Burke said poorly drained soils area there are about 
2,000 sq ft. There would be about 10,000 sq ft of impact for proposed buffer 
work. Commissioner Alyson Eberhardt had emailed Mr. Campbell that this 
project scope was unclear. There was no comment in the submission on the 
functions of the two wetlands as to their importance. Mr. Burke said he would 
use a bobcat only, not an excavator, for boulder removal and leave as many as 
he could leave. He has a trailer and dump truck for his business that he would 
put back there. He said he only needs about 13 feet width for the accessway. 
There are a couple of large boulders near the house that he would want to 
move. Mr. Koff asked where the barn would be. Mr. Burke said outside the 
buffer zone as would the new garden area be outside of it. There are no horses 
going into the barn and no animals planned for it. He would not loam and seed 
the whole disturbed buffer area-this discussion made that clear. 
 
Mr. Campbell asked Commission how it felt about it. He suggested the 
Commission recommend the Planning Board approve the CUP to allow a 15 ft 
wide accessway, loamed and seeded but only if the rest of the area is not 
loamed or seeded and is left natural. Ms. Surman thought it was a good 
compromise. Mr. Piskovitz said the submitted plan won’t show it that way. Mr. 
Burke said he’d revise the drawing for the Planning Board Mr. Koff said it 
would be noted in their decision about the plan revision. It was decided that the 
accessway will be gravel base with a loamed and seeded surface. Discussion on 
related terms was held. Grinding stumps to grade was also approved. 
Recommendation is to allow a 15 ft gravel driveway (with loam and seed 



5 
 

surface) from the existing driveway to access back land. Remaining part of 
buffer zone to remain natural with allowance for grinding stumps. Driveway to 
be as close as practical to the brick path. Owner will plant native species in the 
remaining disturbed buffer zone area. The organic garden should also be  
approved. Ms. Raub and Ms. Murphy will suggest plantings to Mr. Burke. The 
new brick walkway as proposed should also be approved. 
 
Ms. Surman moved to recommend/support approval by the Planning Board of 
the submitted CUP application with the conditions just stated, Ms. Raub 
seconded, and it was unanimously approved. 
 
b. Snowshoe Hullabaloo application. [Applicant not present]. 

 
Mr. Campbell said this event has been approved every year so he excused the 
applicant from attending. Ms. Murphy said a police detail will be present. Mr. 
Piskovitz moved approval, Mr. Koff seconded, discussion on the time of the 
event was held and it was unanimously approved. 
 
c. Barry Conservation Camp Youth Sponsorship. 
 
Mr. O’Hearn reported that the Camp is completely filled this year already. Mr. 
Campbell said the Commission should factor this into its budget for next year. 
Mr. O’Hearn gave some background. The original camp went into disuse. It 
was rebuilt it a few years back. There was discussion on activities and 2018 
planning on this including how the Commission chooses which activity(ies) to 
sponsor and whom to designate to go. Mr. Piskovitz suggested an essay contest. 
Ms. Raub suggested if they sponsored one person, that person could do 
something for the Commission in return. Mr. O’Hearn said he had to report to 
the Commission on his experience there as a youth. Mr. Campbell asked if the 
Commission was interested in sponsoring this? Discussion on Junior 
Conservation Officers and business contributions was held. Mr. Campbell 
suggested that someone who can’t otherwise afford it would be a good choice 
for the Commission to sponsor to attend. Mr. O’Hearn said Big Brother/Big 
Sister would be good for that too. Ms. Surman said it’s a good idea and she 
supports it and thinks it should go into the budget. This is a good educational 
purpose. Ask for $500 in the budget and do an essay contest with the winner 
tied with financial need. Mr. Koff said it’s a good idea-just need to figure out 
funding. Mr. O’Hearn said the applications for 2017 have to be submitted by 
6/1/2017 but it’s already been sold out for this year. Discussion was held about 
some possible way the Commission could reserve a spot for its designee for 
2018. Mr. O’Hearn will look into the matter further and report back. 



6 
 

 
d. Treasurer’s End-of-Year Report for 2016: 
 
Mr. Koff reported the Commission used its budget in full. Ms. Murphy reported 
that was the first time they had used it all. Mr. Koff said they overspent slightly 
($121 total)-and that shortfall needs to be balanced somehow. The same budget 
will be available next year in total if it is approved at the upcoming Town 
Meeting. 
 
Ms. Raub moved the Commission accept the year-end report, Ms. Surman 
seconded and the approval was unanimous. 
 

4. Committee Reports: 
 

a. Property Management: 
 

Ms. Murphy said that Steve Walker from the LCIP from the State walked some 
Commission  properties recently. He may do more and Mr. Campbell would like to 
be notified to possibly meet him and go out with him. 

 
b. Trails:  

 
Mr. Koff reported they are organizing a Trails Committee meeting but need to 
discuss the next committee meeting date: it should be after the Town meeting. 
They can do 3/21 or 3/22, or another date, perhaps earlier. Several Members 
couldn’t do 3/14, the Commission’s normal meeting date in March. There was 
discussion on moving the regular meeting date up or back. Ms. Murphy suggested 
the Commission could meet on 3/21 in the Wheelwright Room. If too many folks, 
the Commission may need to move to Library or pick another date. The Trails 
meeting would then be the next night (3/22). Henderson Swasey trails need to be 
discussed. Ms. Murphy asked if the Commission could have a subgroup discussion 
beforehand to get things on track. Mr. O’Hearn, Ms. Surman, and Mr. Koff will 
discuss an agenda, Mr. Campbell will be kept in the loop of information but there 
will be no quorum for the subgroup. 
 
Mr. O’Hearn did walk some trails a few weeks ago at Dolloff and Little River. 
There is an old canoe at headwaters of Little River. Cross mill site and go straight, 
north toward Rte 101, on other side. Bridge still there and still usable, but no trail 
to it, just a hunting trail there. Discussion on this area was held. 
 
 



7 
 

c. Outreach: 
 

Snowshoe race: Mr. Campbell suggested expand parking from existing area 
toward barn and park cars there in field. Ms. Raub said explore with DPW. Ms. 
Murphy said check deed too. Ms. Raub suggested to use land from the parking lot 
down to trail. Farmer doesn’t mow all of it. There’s a wetlands near the barn. 
Should have taken the offer to plow the parking area. Couple of ruts in there, they 
sunk in a bit. Mr. Anderson said 70 people were ready to go out for that event. Mr. 
Campbell concerned about night time event, not enough folks to help participants 
cross the road. The Ccommission had created a following, need to accommodate 
the users. Ms. Murphy said that Public Works has worked on that lot since its 
acquisition and if they felt it was too soft, shouldn’t question it. Mr. O’Hearn: If 
DPW wheels had spun, then would have known. Discussion was held on needing it 
plowed for this year. Ms. Murphy said can’t impact the agricultural use. Need to 
have a plan for that number of folks. Mr. O’Hearn said there was no snow the 
Wednesday before the event. Ms. Raub said should plow the parking lot now and 
get it going. Need enough folks to handle parking and such. Ms. Raub said 
Saturday 3/4 or daytime Sunday 3/5 would work. Mr. Koff said could get help 
beyond the Commission. The weekend of 3/11 is not good. Discussion on all this 
and reservations for spots for attendance was held. Brown Paper tickets were used. 
Southeast Land Trust event was limited parking. Consensus was for March 4th, 
Saturday night. 
 
5. Approval of Minutes for 1/10/17: 

 
After discussion on corrections, additions and changes, Ms. Surman moved to 
approve the minutes of 1/10/17 as amended, Mr. O’Hearn seconded and the vote 
for approval was unanimous. 

 
6. Correspondence: 

 
Henderson Swasey is part of a tree farm plan and got letter acknowledging the 
timber project work. Mr. O’Hearn asked about a sign for tree farm. Mr. Campbell 
said there should be a tree farm sign. 

 
7. Other Business: 

 
Revision of the Bylaws started by Ms. Murphy and Ms. Raub, would like to get 
a draft for March meeting. Discussion on edits and not a lot of major revision. 

 



8 
 

8. Next Meeting: is 3/21/17 with submission date of 3/10/17, location to be 
decided. 

 
9. Adjournment: 

 
There being no further business before the Commission, Mr. Koff moved to 
adjourn, Ms. Raub seconded and the vote was unanimously approved. Vice Chair 
Campbell adjourned the session at 8:50 pm. 

 
     Respectfully submitted by David Pancoast, Recording Secretary. 
 



These minutes are subject to possible correction/revision at a subsequent Exeter  
Conservation Commission meeting 

 

1 | P a g e  
 

Exeter Conservation Commission        February 14, 2017 

Site Walk 

On Feb 14th, at 9:00 am the Conservation Commission conducted a site walk to review a 
Wetlands Conservation Overlay District Conditional Use Permit application for 104 Brentwood 
Road. 
 
 Members in attendance included Bill Campbell, Ginny Raub, Anne Surman.  Also in attendance 
was Kristen Murphy (Exeter’s Natural Resource Planner) and applicant Chris Burke (owner). 
 
The prior day’s heavy snowfall made seeing ground cover conditions difficult, however the 
owner provided Commission members with an overview of the project, was able to use trees 
and boulders to indicate the extent of wetlands and buffer, and Commission members had an 
opportunity to ask questions.  Mr. Burke described the intent was the “clean up” the area 
adjacent to the road by grinding out the stumps, grading to a smoother surface, adding loam 
and seeding the area.  In addition, the main purpose goal of providing periodic access to the 
upland area behind his house for a garden and a future barn.  He clarified that both the barn 
and garden would be located outside of the buffer area and that he had no intention to fertilize 
the area within the buffer area.     
 
The walk concluded at 9:25 am.   
 
Kristen Murphy 
 

 


	March Meeting Memo-p1.pdf
	Date:  March 17, 2017




